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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

PURCHASING OFFICE

CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS

DESCRIPTION: BENEFITS PLAN ADMINISTRATION
RFP NO. JSD0124 ADDENDUM NO. 1 

DATE OF ADDENDUM 5/11/2012
This Request for Proposal is hereby amended to incorporate the following:

1.  The additional written questions received and the answers thereto are listed below:
Purchasing Office Related Questions:

Question 1:
The Purchasing website will not be available from May 3-8, but the vendor clarification questions deadline is May 4, 2012.  How can vendors check the Purchasing website or send in questions during this time?

Answer:
If vendors have clarification questions, send them directly to Jeff Dilbert at the Purchasing Department.  The addendum will be posted on the website once it is functional.

Question 2:
How long is the current contract with CompuSys/Erisa Group, Inc.?

Answer:
The current contract had an initial 3 year contract with 3 one year extensions.  The current contract expires 12/31/2012.

Question 3:
Will vendors have access to the current contract?

Answer:
Vendors would need to submit a formal open records request to obtain a copy of the current contract.  However, vendors can search the City’s Finance website which will show payment history for this contract.

Question 4:
Why is the initial contract term for this solicitation only one year?  Is the City open to extending to 3 years then optional renewals?

Answer:
The benefits environment is rapidly evolving and for business reasons, the City needs to have flexibility with contracting terms.  The solicitation currently states the contract terms.  However, vendors can take exception to this requirement,  provide alternative language along with the business need for the exception so that the City can evaluate accordingly.  All exceptions must be clearly indicated in Tab 8 on Attachment 12 of the proposal response.

Question 5:
Please identify the other Texas governmental entities that participate in the Interlocal Purchasing Agreement with the City of Austin.

Answer:
Denver, Seattle, El Paso, Cedar Park, and Travis County,

Question 6:
Please clarify the need for both a proposal and performance bond and is the City willing to accept approved financials to confirm financial stability and performance?

Answer:
The City cannot accept approved financials in lieu of a the proposal and /or performance bonds.  The proposal bond simply tells the City that should you be recommended for award, you are able to secure the performance bond.  It is analogous to getting pre-approved for a loan from your bank.

Question 7:
Are there any file size restrictions for the e-mail submission?  Are there any functional restrictions for the e-mail submission, e.g., does City of Austin accept zip files and all file formats?

Answer:
If these questions refer to proposal submissions, please be aware that vendor proposals cannot be submitted electronically.  
If these questions refer to electronic communication between the City and a contracted vendor, the City requires that all electronic communications that contain confidential information be sent through a secure and encrypted process.  

Question 8:
Would it be possible for the City of Austin to provide us with a Word or editable PDF version of “RFP_5800_JSD0124_PAC1_v1.pdf”?  Would it be possible for you to send us the RFP documents in Microsoft Word?  If this is not possible for all documents, could we get at least Section 0500 Scope of Work in this format?

Answer:
No.  When we have provided identical documents in different formats in the past, it led to confusion and errors on the vendor’s part, which jeopardized their proposals.  If you download the most current Adobe Reader (free) you will be able to manage the PDF documents

Question 9:
In Section 0600, you state: Complete and submit the following documents and place in Tab 2 of your proposal response.  Offer and Award Sheet.  Where do we obtain the Award Sheet?

Answer:
This is a typo as this document is only called “Offer Sheet”.  

Question 10:
Which Tab should we insert Section 0835 (Nonresident Bidder Provisions)?

Answer:
Please complete and submit Section 0835 – Nonresident Bidder Provisions in Tab 2 – City of Austin Purchasing Documents after Section 0820 – Living Wages Employee Certification Document.

Question 11:
In Tab 2, City of Austin Purchasing Documents, the following question was asked:  Section 0700 References.  Provide a list of at least five references (with at least two from the public sector) for each administration service you are proposing.  Include a contact name, address, email, and telephone number for each.  Provide references for both current and former accounts.  Based on the above question, are we supposed to provide at least 5 current client references and 5 former client references or 5 references in total?
Answer:
At a minimum, vendors should provide at least 5 references and should include both current and former clients as well as 2 references from the public sector.  However, vendors are welcome to provide more than 5 references.

Miscellaneous Questions:

Question 1:
Has the volume of enrollment changed recently?

Answer:
The City’s enrollment volume has been relatively stable for the past 4 years.  

Question 2:
Does the current vendor have walk-in business?

Answer:
Yes.  Employees and other Covered Persons do go directly to CompuSys/Erisa Group’s local office regarding dental claims questions, FLEXTRA claims questions, and delivering premium payments for COBRA coverage or Self-Pay coverage.

Question 3:
Please clarify the intent of Section 3.4 Fiduciary Responsibility in the City contract that requires the TPA be named fiduciary and held responsible for interpreting the terms of the Plan after the City confirmed during the Pre-Proposal Conference that they would be determining eligibility.

Answer:
Fiduciary responsibility does not apply to Eligibility Administration.  The City determines who is eligible for benefits coverage.  The Contractor must assume fiduciary responsibility for administering the benefit programs (for example: collecting the premium payments or terminating coverage for COBRA participants or Self-Pay Retirees on a timely basis; processing claims for either the Employee Dental Assistance Plan or Flexible Benefits spending accounts) according to the terms of the benefit plans as determined by the City.

Question 4:
Please provide participation breakdowns for COBRA, Continuation of Coverage for Domestic Partners & Self-Pay Administration; Self Funded Dental Plan(s); and Flexible Benefits (FSAs).

Answer:
Please see Exhibit 7 – Summary Enrollment Report and also Paragraph 5.0, Paragraph 6.0, and Paragraph 7.0 in the Section 0500 Scope of Work document.

Question 5:
Could the City breakdown Retiree participation by Self-Pay, Retirement System and surviving spouse?

Answer:
Please see Exhibit 7 – Summary Enrollment Report for this breakdown.  

Question 6:
Is Retiree administration considered to fall into the category of Eligibility Administration or COBRA, Continuation of Coverage for Domestic Partners & Self-Pay Administration? 

Answer:
The Eligibility Administration vendor will maintain the full list of all eligible Covered Persons, including Retirees, and is responsible for communicating this list with the City’s benefit vendors.  

The Self-Pay Administration vendor will receive the list of eligible Covered Persons from the Eligibility Administration vendor and is responsible for collecting the appropriate premiums for the elected benefit coverage from the Self-Pay Retiree or Surviving Spouse.

Question 7:
What service enhancements does the City seek to gain for its Benefit Plans Administration?

Answer:
Vendors should provide in their proposal response other service enhancements that they offer other clients that are not included as requirements in the Section 0500 Scope of Work.

Question 8:
Our company’s administrative solution depends more on automation than is currently in place.  We would like to understand better where City of Austin would prefer for us to include the details of our automated solution.  In Section 0600 Proposal Preparation Instructions, Tab 8 - Exceptions to the Proposal states that the proposer can state any exceptions in this section.  Is this the proper place for process-oriented exceptions or is this section to be used for exceptions to Terms & Conditions?  If the process-oriented exceptions are to be provided elsewhere, please let me know where City of Austin would like us to provide this information.

Answer:
Place alternative or enhanced solutions information within the applicable Proposal Response Tab after completing required responses.  For example, if Proposer has enhanced services for the Eligibility Administration service, in Tab 4 of the Proposal response, complete all information as required for Tab 4 – Part A and Part B and then submit enhanced services information in Tab 4 – Part C.

Implementation Related Questions:

Question 1:
In the Communications section of the 0500 Scope of Work (Paragraph 3.7) states that the Contractor must supply 5,000 copies of general written communication materials during Open Enrollment and throughout the year. Can you please elaborate on this request (i.e., are these enrollment worksheets, benefits guides, etc.)?  Who provides the communication materials?

Answer:
Eligibility Administration:  Vendor provides the Open Enrollment Coverage Information Statements which are delivered to the City for distribution and the Open Enrollment Confirmation of Coverage Statements which are mailed to the employee and retiree home addresses.

The COBRA, Continuation of Coverage for Domestic Partners, and Self-Pay Administration:  Vendor provides and mails to home address the notification letters, guides, benefits enrollment forms, late payment and termination of benefits letters, and Open Enrollment packets for the COBRA participants and Continuation of Coverage for Domestic Partners participants.

The Self-Funded Dental Plan Claims Administration:  Vendor provides claim forms, Explanation of Benefits (EOB), annual and on-going identification cards, Certificates of Creditable Coverage, and IRS – 1099 Forms at year end.

The Flexible Benefits Claims Administration for FLEXTRA Health care and Dependent care spending accounts:  Vendor provides claim forms, printed account balance statements 4 times a year, and a debit card for all Employees enrolled in the FLEXTRA Health care spending account program.

The Flexible Benefits Claims Administration for Childcare Assistance Program:  Vendor provides claim forms and IRS – 1099 Forms at year end.

The City provides, at a minimum, the annual Employee Benefits Guide, Benefits Guide for Retirees and Surviving Spouses, the Employee Dental Assistance Plan Document, the Employee Benefits Enrollment Forms, and the Retiree Benefits Enrollment Forms.

Question 2:
Please clarify the dates referenced in the solicitation, specifically the contract start date of January 2013 with implementation starting in September 2012.

Answer:
Upon City Council award, anticipated for August 2012, the successful vendor(s) will immediately begin the implementation process with the City’s benefits staff.  The Eligibility Administration vendor implementation will include, at a minimum, sending test files for the 834 HIPAA file with the City’s benefits vendors, sending test payroll files with the City’s payroll department, and receiving test files from the current Eligibility Administration Contractor.

For all other administration services, the implementation period will begin in September with the Contractor’s customer service staff prepared and ready the first day of Open Enrollment in mid-October 2012.  The contract payments will begin January 2013 but cannot include services rendered prior to January 1, 2013.

Question 3:
Can you explain how the bank accounts are funded?

Answer:
Currently, the deposits and payments are made out of the City’s zero balance account (ZBA) for the following administration services:  1) COBRA, Continuation of Coverage for Domestic Partners, and Self-Pay Administration, 2) Self-Funded Dental Plan Claims Administration, 3) Flexible Benefits Claims Administration services specific to the Childcare Assistance Program.  

Currently, deposits and payments are made out of a separate bank account for the Flexible Benefits Claims Administration services specific to FLEXTRA health care and dependent care spending accounts.  This is not a City account.  The City deposits Employee payroll deductions on a bi-weekly payroll cycle basis.

Question 4:
What payroll system does the City of Austin use?

Answer:
Banner.

Question 5:
Please clarify the three retirement systems.  Is the ERS you mentioned earlier the same as the State of Texas ERS?

Answer:
The City’s Retirees belong to one of three pension (retirement) systems:  City of Austin Employees’ Retirement System (COAERS), City of Austin Police Retirement System, and the Austin Fire Fighters Relief and Retirement Fund.  Although the acronyms are the same, the City’s ERS pension system is not the same as the State’s ERS pension system.

Question 6:
Will the City want to convert historical benefits data and if so, how many years back?

Answer:
The Employee Dental Assistance Plan will have some claims data transferred including:  lifetime orthodontia accumulators or any codes that have a 5 year limitation of coverage such as dentures, bridges, crowns, or orthodontia appliances.

Question 7:
Can you please provide last year’s benefit support call volumes.  Please provide further detail on call types, if available.

Answer:
This information is not available.
Question 8:
What is the historical retirement rate?

Answer:
For terminations processed in calendar year 2010, approximately 50% were for retirements; for terminations processed in calendar year 2011, approximately 45% were retirements.

Question 9:
Are there any other language requirements for the call center?

Answer:
The Eligibility Administration Contractor must have customer service staff that can speak Spanish during the annual Open Enrollment period to answer benefits questions from Spanish speaking participants.  All administration service Contractors are required to provide a TTY line.

Question 10:
Does the City’s payroll system split payroll deductions by benefit or does it make one lump sum payment?

Answer:
For each deduction code (as listed on Exhibit 3 – Employee Benefits Deduction Codes) that is keyed into an Employee’s record, the payroll file (as listed on Exhibit 5 – Payroll File Layout) reports each benefits deduction code separately with applicable Employee amount or Employer amount for every employee. 

Eligibility Administration Service Questions:

Question 1:
Does the City have a web based enrollment system?

Answer:
The current Contractor, CompuSys/Erisa Group Inc., provides a web based enrollment system for Employees and Retirees to access during Open Enrollment to make benefits changes.  During the rest of the year, Employees and Retirees must come into the Employee Benefits office and complete Benefits Enrollment Forms for all qualifying event changes.  
Question 2:
Does the vendor provide dependent eligibility verification?  Are there other eligibility activities the City wants to maintain?

Answer:
The City determines eligibility for Employees, Retirees and dependent.  The City determines effective dates, verifies benefit categories based on employment, and verifies appropriate documentation,   The Eligibility Administration Contractor will perform validity checks for appropriate coverage (such as verification of eligibility age or double coverage).  

Question 3:
Will the City want a list of dependent reaching the eligibility age limit?

Answer:
Yes.  Please see Section 0500, Paragraph 4.11 and Paragraph 4.14.

Self-Funded Dental Plan Claims Administration Service Questions:

Question 1:
What is happening with the fully insured retiree dental plans?

Answer:
Retirees participate in one of two fully insured Retiree dental plans and will not be eligible for the Employee Dental Assistance Plan, unless they are on COBRA following termination.

Question 2:
In the Section 0500, Paragraph 6.10 – Reporting, the City requires the utilization reporting to be broken down by various categories.  How do we determine each Covered Person’s category?

Answer:
The Eligibility Administration Contractor works with each of the City’s benefit vendors to determine the structure coding for the 834 HIPAA File setup.  The structure coding would determine the Covered Person’s “category” for reporting purposes.

Question 3:
Can the number of dental claims be included in the monthly claims report?

Answer:
Please see Exhibit 13 - the Employee census as of January 2012, and Exhibit 14 - the Employee Dental Assistance Plan claims data for calendar year 2010 and 2011.  The reports show the number of claimants for each reporting month, not the number of claims processed.

Question 4:
For the Self-Funded Dental Plan Claims Administration service, can the City provide a census document which includes: Coverage Type, Home Zip Codes, Gender, DOB, and Plan Selection? 

Answer:
Please see Exhibit 13 - the Employee census as of January 2012.
Question 5:
For the Self-Funded Dental Plan Claims Administration service, can the City provide the Carrier History within past 5 years?

Answer:
The City’s Employee Dental Assistance Plan is a self-funded benefit.  The dental claims administrator for the past 5 years has been CompuSys/Erisa Group Inc.

Question 6:
For the Self-Funded Dental Plan Claims Administration service, can the City provide a report for the past 24 months of Month by Month Claims?

Answer:
Please see Exhibit 13 - Employee census as of January 2012, and Exhibit 14 the Employee Dental Assistance Plan claims data for calendar year 2010 and 2011.  This reports show the number of claimants for each reporting month, not the number of claims processed.

COBRA, Continuation of Coverage for Domestic Partners, and Self-Pay Administration Service Questions:

Question 1:
Are other methods of payment allowed other than coupon books for Self-Pay participants?

Answer:
The City requires the Contractor to provide enrolled participants coupon books for making manual payments.  However, vendors are welcome to propose additional forms of payment arrangement options.  Proposer must indicate any additional participant or City cost for optional payment arrangements.

Question 2:
How many COBRA eligible events per year over last 3 years?

Answer:
Over the last year, the City had an average of 130 qualifying event letters produced monthly.

Flexible Benefits Claims Administration Service Questions:

Question 1:
Please provide volumes for HRA and HSA accounts.

Answer:
The City is considering implementing either a HRA or HSA program but does not currently have either program in place.

Question 2:
Is the City open to FLEXTRA claim payments more frequently than once a week?

Answer:
Yes.

Attachment 1 Cost Sheet Questions:

Question 1:
If we propose fee caps for each of the extension periods listed on the cost sheet, will the City use the high end of the fee caps for evaluation purposes?

Answer:
Yes.  When evaluating the cost of all proposals, the guaranteed maximum fee cap proposed will be used to calculate the cost over the full length of the contract.  It is important to note that if a vendor is awarded the contract the extension options cannot exceed the fee cap guarantees.  However, the extension options could be less than the guaranteed fee cap.

Question 2:
If there are additional COBRA fees than what are allowed on the cost sheet how are they shown?  

Answer:
All required services included in this solicitation must be included in the quoted fee to the City unless otherwise notated and must be inclusive of labor, materials, supplies, printing, travel and all costs and fees including administrative burden for providing these services.  

However, if Proposer is providing service alternatives (such as ACH payments for Self-Pay Retiree coverage) in addition to the requirements listed in this solicitation, Proposer should indicate on the cost sheet additional costs.

Question 3:
If the number of enrollees changes due to the City absorbing another organization, how does that affect the quoted rates?

Answer:
All fees must be guaranteed regardless of enrollment per plan year.  However, if there was a significant change in the number of Covered Persons, the City would be required to bid the services out again.

Question 4:
Please identify current fees associated with all four categories of Requested Services (including but not limited to per employee, per participant, Flex Card, Dental Administration, discrimination testing, Plan Doc creation, customization/ad hoc requests, printing, eligibility system, web enrollment system, qualifying event notifications, per continuant, new hire notice, confirmation statements mailings, Open Enrollment hard copy communications, etc.).

Answer:
Attachment 1 Cost Sheet includes all fees associated with the current contract, except for the Health Reimbursement Account or Health Savings Account Administration.

Performance Measures and Guarantees Questions:

Question 1:
Are there any Performance Measures in the current contract?

Answer:
Yes.

Question 2:
How does the City measure implementation satisfaction?

Answer:
The City’s benefits and purchasing staff will be surveyed after implementation is completed to review all issues including contract negotiations, implementation timelines are adhered to, administrative manuals are produced, etc.

Question 3:
Are Employees surveyed regarding satisfaction?

Answer:
The City has cultivated an environment with Employees and Retirees in which the City’s benefit staff are the first point of contact when there are questions or issues for any of the City’s benefit programs.  The City’s benefit staff is surveyed quarterly to review overall satisfaction of each benefit program.  The City’s satisfaction will be based on whether Employees/Retirees were affected by a Contractor’s actions.  

2. Exhibit 13 and Exhibit 14 are hereby added to this solicitation.

3. All other terms and conditions shall remain the same.

APPROVED BY:             Signed copy available in Purchasing Office________
Jeff Dilbert, (512) 974‑2021                    

Purchasing Office, Finance and Administrative Services Department 

ACKNOWLEDGED BY:

_____________________   ____________________   _____________

BIDDER                  AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE        DATE

RETURN ONE (1) COPY TO PURCHASING OFFICE, CITY OF AUSTIN, PRIOR TO CLOSING DATE OR WITH YOUR PROPOSAL; FAILURE TO DO SO MAY CONSTITUTE GROUNDS FOR REJECTION OF YOUR PROPOSAL.
